
 

 
Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority 

Regular Board Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, October 19, 2023 

Arvada City Hall 
8101 Ralston Road, Arvada, CO 90002 

 
3:00 p.m. 

Council Conference Room, 3rd Floor 
 
    
1. Call to Order 
    
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
    
3. Public Comment 
    
4. Approval of Minutes 
  A. August 17, 2023 JPPHA Meeting 
    
5. New Business 
  A. Presentation of 2020 Audit 
  B. Letter of Engagement - Icenogle Seaver Pogue 
  C. Approval of Streamline Proposal 
    
6. Report from Executive Director 
    
7. 2023 Budget - Budget Amendment 

  A. Public Hearing on Budget Amendment for 2023 Budget: 
Resolution 23-01 A Resolution Amending the 2023 Operating Budget 

    
8. 2024 Budget - Proposed Budget 

  A. Public Hearing on Proposed 2024 Operating Budget 
Resolution 23-02 A Resolution Approving the 2024 Operating Budget 

    
9. Report of the General Counsel 
    
10. Report from the Board of Directors 
    
11. Adjournment 
 



1

 

Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority 
Special Board Meeting Minutes

Thursday, August 17, 2023
Arvada City Hall

8101 Ralston Road, Arvada, CO 80002

3:30 p.m.
Council Conference Room, 3rd Floor

I. Call to Order

Chairman David Jones called the meeting of the Jefferson Parkway Public 
Highway Authority (JPPHA) to order at 3:30 p.m.  Present were Chairman David 
Jones, Director Marc Williams, Director Deven Shaff, and Director Lesley 
Dahlkemper.  Also in attendance: Bill Ray, Exec. Director; Heidi Henkel, 
Broomfield Commissioner; Tamara Seaver, JPPHA Counsel; Rachel Morris, 
Arvada City Attorney; Nancy Rogers, Broomfield City Attorney; Lorie Gillis, 
Arvada City Manager; Linda Haley, Arvada Deputy City Manager; Kym Sorrells, 
Jefferson County Attorney

This meeting was a hybrid meeting using webinar technology.  Bill Ray, 
Executive Director; Lorie Gillis, Arvada City Manager; Linda Haley, Arvada 
Deputy City Manager; Rachel Morris, Arvada City Attorney were present in 
the 3rd floor conference room at Arvada City Hall.  All other participants were 
remote.  Members of the public were given notice with instructions on how to 
participate with public comment.

II. Pledge of Allegiance

III. Public Comment - None

IV. Approval of Minutes
A. January 19, 2023



Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority
Board Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2023

Director Shaff stated that the January 19 minutes show that Broomfield’s 
withdrawal would be on the April agenda and since the Board did not meet in 
April, he thought it would be on today’s agenda.  
Ms. Seaver said that Mr. Ray had planned to report on that in the Executive 
Director’s Report, and noted that it would be premature to vote on that issue today 
since settlement negotiations are still ongoing.   
 
Director Dahlkemper moved to approve the January 19, 2023 minutes.  Director 
Shaff seconded the motion.

The following votes were cast on the motion:
Those voting Yes:  Jones, Dahlkemper, Shaff, Williams
The Motion was Approved.

V. Report from Executive Director

Mr. Ray noted the issue of when the withdrawal item will be placed on the agenda 
has already been discussed in the previous agenda item.  He reported that there 
are two regular meetings yet this year, one on October 19 and one on December 
21.

Chairman Jones said he hopes we would have some resolution before one of those 
two meetings and asked if a special meeting could be called if that happens.  Ms. 
Seaver affirmed she would recommend a special meeting be called for the 
purpose of taking action on the withdrawal at the appropriate juncture.  Ms. 
Seaver then clarified that in the event a settlement is not reached, no action would 
be taken by the Authority in regard to Broomfield’s withdrawal request.  

Director Williams said it should be noted for the record that he and Mr. Jones will 
be leaving office on Nov. 13 and he felt it would be optimal to conclude 
withdrawal matters prior to having the item thrust at newly elected officials in 
Arvada. 

VI. 2023 Budget – Budget Amendment

A. Public Hearing on Budget Amendment for 2023 Budget:
Resolution 23-01 A Resolution Amending the 2023 Operating Budget

Chairman Jones opened the public hearing on Budget Amendment for 2023, 
Resolution 23-01, A Resolution Amending the 2023 Operating Budget.

Mr. Ray reported that at the time the 2023 budget was prepared, it was based on 
minimal anticipated activity, which he noted is not the case.  He said the notice 
for the budget public hearing was published in the newspaper and that he has 



Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority
Board Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2023

received no requests to inspect the budget.  He then reviewed the changes to the 
budget.   

He reported on the additional legal expenses given increased involvement of 
general counsel as well as specialty counsels for environmental and now public-
private partnership matters related to working toward settlement of the pending 
litigation to effectuate Broomfield’s withdrawal. Mr. Ray reported that survey 
work to define and confirm the proposed right of way which Broomfield would 
convey was necessary because an actual legal description of metes and bounds 
had never been done by Broomfield. He noted auditing costs are also being 
increased and reported that there will be a meeting next week between our finance 
department and the auditor.  The audit will be presented at the October meeting 
for approval.  He said there is also a small fund balance deficit of $3,000 and he is 
asking for a 2% contingency of $3,200.  He Reported that the final modified 
budget is a total of $158,500, or for each member $52,666.

Chairman Jones closed the public comment portion of the public hearing.

Director Shaff said in looking at the revenue side, he is curious as to where the 
revenue for these expenses will come from.  Mr. Ray expressed his belief that it 
will come from the members.  Director Shaff announced that Broomfield will not 
support any contribution to fund the budget increases generated by Broomfield’s 
withdrawal.  

Director Dahlkemper sought confirmation that there is no fund balance to help 
with the increased expenses.  Mr. Ray so confirmed. 

Director Williams sought input from general counsel of the ramifications of a 
member not contributing to the budget.  Ms. Seaver noted that the budget 
amendment could not legally be adopted without funding as a short term 
consequence of the refusal.  She reported that in the longer term the matter could 
be addressed in the pending settlement discussions or in the litigation in the 
absence of settlement.

Director Dahlkemper asked for the number for each member entity for this 
amendment and Mr. Ray reported it would total $52,666 per member entity.

Chairman Jones asked as to Director Shaff’s hesitancy in participating.  Mr. Shaff 
responded that Broomfield requested to withdraw and they are merely continuing 
the practice of not approving the budgets as they continue to try to withdraw from 
the board.

Chairman Jones said it feels like Broomfield is counting on other members of the 
authority to carry the weight of a possible settlement when many of the actions 
were necessary to reaching closure on Broomfield’s withdrawal short of litigation.  



Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority
Board Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2023

Ms. Rodgers noted the various counsel for the parties are talking about what the 
contributions are to date and how that ties into the reimbursement agreement, 
which might help this part of the discussion.  She reported that Broomfield has 
not authorized any more contributions.  

Director Dahlkemper said she can take the budget matter back to Jeffco and 
recommend that they pay the amount per member but will need approval from her 
full Board of County Commissioners.   Lorie Gillis noted Arvada would include it 
as part of our budget, same as the county.  

Director Williams expressed the need for another special meeting after Arvada 
and Jeffco have addressed the funding matter.  He asked Mr. Ray if there is a 
number that keeps the settlement talks going.  Mr. Ray said all of the expenses 
that are being discussed are as a result of Broomfield’s request to withdraw, with 
the exception of the audit and that he is puzzled that Broomfield wants to move 
towards settlement but refuses to pay for the expenses to move in that direction.  

Ms. Seaver echoed Director Williams’s earlier comments regarding timing 
because the lack of immediate funding will delay the negotiations given the need 
for public-private partnership special counsel and associated legal advice on 
transactions to effectuate Broomfield’s right of way transfer without chilling 
future concession efforts.  Ms. Seaver also expressed her belief that it was fair to 
seek the unfunded Broomfield share of budget excesses in the settlement 
negotiations because all of the expenses are all necessary to effectuate the 
withdrawal and/or the need for the same were generated by Broomfield requests.

Chairman Jones asked for comments from the three legal counsels representing 
the entities.  Rachel Morris said her recommendation is to move forward with the 
direction we are headed as far as negotiations and legal advice, but then save for a 
later date, through settlement or litigation, how that would be split between the 
parties.  Ms. Seaver noted that public-private partnership special counsel will not 
work without payment.

Director Williams said it is important for Ms. Morris to share with Ms. Rogers the 
recent discussion that the Arvada City Council had in executive session because 
there could be significant ramifications.

Ms. Sorrells said she is wondering if the different phases could be parceled out in 
phase 1 and phase 2 and the Board could authorize a smaller amount.  Ms. Seaver 
reported that phase 1 of the special counsel’s engagement is not to exceed 
$20,000, and Phase 2 adds another $30,000 for a total of $50,000.   Chairman 
Jones asked if the $50,000 gets us to a “go or no go” and Ms. Seaver said yes.  



Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority
Board Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2023

Mr. Ray clarified that Arvada and Jeffco could have a conversation to see if they 
would put money forward to pay for special counsel for the phase 1 work so that 
the negotiations can continue.  

Director Shaff said this discussion is why he wanted to have Broomfield’s request 
to withdraw on the agenda so everyone understands how they got where they are 
today.  He said Broomfield submitted their request in 2019 and today, in looking 
at the budget, it would be asking Broomfield to cover legal expenses to cover the 
awkward situation for Broomfield’s withdrawal.  He said in looking at the 
negotiation, it is the JPPHA making the decision so the Board must act according 
to those expenses rather than individual members making those expenses.  He 
expressed his belief that the reason Broomfield funding for the Authority is 
awkward is because some of these expenses have to do with the litigation or the 
negotiations which makes it a little murky.  He said he is fine with Arvada and 
Jeffco going back and looking at those, but he’s trying to move forward.

Chairman Jones said as regards the public hearing, there will be no action taken 
today.  Ms. Seaver confirmed as much and noted that if Director Shaff needed a 
vote on the withdrawal matter in advance of the settlement or litigation being 
concluded, she would have no issue with the Authority voting against withdrawal 
for the record, she recommended against taking any other action with respect the 
withdrawal.  

Chairman Jones closed the public hearing on Resolution 23-01.

Chairman Jones moved to table the budget amendment.  Director Dahlkemper 
seconded the motion.  

The following votes were cast on the motion:
Those voting Yes:  Jones, Williams, Dahlkemper, Shaff
The Motion was Approved

VII. New Business
A. Letter of Engagement - Icenogle Seaver Pogue

Director Williams moved that the letter of engagement be tabled.  Director 
Dahlkemper seconded the motion.

The following votes were cast on the motion:
Those voting Yes:  Jones, Williams, Dahlkemper, Shaff
The Motion was Approved

B. Approval of Streamline Proposal

No discussion occurred on this agenda item.



Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority
Board Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2023

VIII. Discussion Items
A. 2020 Audit

Mr. Ray said he covered this item in his Executive Director report.  He 
said the board did authorize the 2020 audit because it is in arrears and the auditor 
will meet with the finance department in Arvada next week and it will then be 
finalized and presented to the board at the October meeting.

B. Future JPPHA Board Meetings

Mr. Ray said there are two quarterly meetings that remain for the year, one on 
October 19 and the other on December 21.  

IX. Report of the General Counsel
A. Approval to intervene in Case Number 2022CV30624 in Jefferson County 

District Court, and to engage City of Arvada and Jefferson County litigation 
staff to represent the Authority under the Common Interest Privilege

Ms. Seaver reported on the common interest privilege which had been established 
by and between Arvada, Jefferson County and JPPHA with respect to the 
Broomfield withdrawal and associated litigation.  She recommended that the 
Board approve intervention in the pending litigation, and the engagement of 
Jefferson County and Arvada litigation specialists to represent the Authority in 
the same.  She further reported that the intervention action does not implicate any 
immediate funding problems, and hence could be voted on during the meeting.

Director Shaff noted the litigation has been out there for quite some time and 
asked why intervene now?  Ms. Seaver responded noting that if settlement is not 
attained, she recommends the Authority be in a position to expeditiously join the 
litigation to further Authority’s best.  Director Shaff said Director Williams said 
he would like this to be wrapped up by November and asked if this matter could 
be voted on in October.  Ms. Seaver reported that would be possible but she 
reiterated her recommendation to approve intervention now because all three 
jurisdictions were present fulfilling the Authority’s Establishing Contract 
requirements for a quorum.  

Director Williams expressed his frustration and moved, based on discussions 
during the meeting, that the Authority approve intervention in Case Number 
2022CV30624 in Jefferson County District Court, and the engagement of City of 
Arvada and Jefferson County litigation staff to represent the Authority under the 
Common Interest Privilege.  Director Dahlkemper seconded the motion.

Director Shaff abstained from the vote.



Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority
Board Meeting Minutes
August 17, 2023

The following votes were cast on the motion:
Those voting Yes:  Jones, Williams, Dahlkemper
Abstain:  Shaff
The Motion was Approved

X. Report from the Board of Directors – None

XI. Adjournment at 4:28.

________________________________________________
David Jones, Chair

_______________________________________________
Christine Koch
Recording Secretary

























(916) 900-6619

info@getstreamline.com

www.getstreamline.com

Streamline Platform - Subscription Agreement

CUSTOMER: Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority ORDER DATE: 08 / 08 / 2023

This Software as a Service Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into on the start date listed below, between Streamline

(DBA of Digital Deployment, Inc.) with a place of business at 2321 P St, Sacramento, CA 95816 (“Company”), and the

Customer listed above (“Customer”). This Agreement incorporates the Streamline Terms of Service. W9 is available

online. Most customers prefer annual billing for convenience, but all subscriptions are cancellable anytime with a

written 30-day notice and are subject to annual appropriation by the Customer. Additional Provisions on Page 2.

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES: See Page 3 for an overview of what Streamline Web includes, and for more information

please review our subscription-based website toolkit for local government . 

SUBSCRIPTION ORDER:

Name Price

Streamline CP Essentials $720.00

One-Time Migration Costs:

Invoice Frequency:

Additional Billing Details:

$0

Annually

N/A

Order #:

Original Order?

Billing Start Date:

14532234598

Original

9/1/2023

Billing Person:

Billing Address:

City, State, Zip:

Phone:

Email:

Streamline:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Signature:

Customer:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Signature:

Page 1 of 3



(916) 900-6619

info@getstreamline.com

www.getstreamline.com

Additional Provisions

1. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, the entire liability of the parties, their Boards of

Directors, employees, af�liates and suppliers for all claims relating to this agreement shall be limited to

the amount Customer paid for the services during the twelve (12) months prior to such claim. Subject to

applicable law, the parties, their Boards of Directors, employees, af�liates and suppliers are not liable

for any of the following: (a) indirect, special, incidental, punitive or consequential damages; (b) damages

relating to failures of telecommunications, the internet, electronic communications, corruption, security,

loss or theft of data, viruses, spyware, loss of business, revenue, pro�ts or investment, or use of software

or hardware that does not meet streamline systems requirements. The above limitations apply even if

the parties, their Boards of Directors, employees, af�liates and suppliers have been advised of the

possibility of such damages. This agreement sets forth the entire liability of the parties, their Boards of

Directors, employees, af�liates and suppliers and the exclusive remedy with respect to the services and

its use.

1. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, each Party shall indemnify, defend and hold the

other Party harmless from all liabilities, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys fees)

that such Party may suffer, sustain or become subject to as a result any misrepresentation or breach of

warranty, covenant or agreement of the indemnifying Party contained herein or the indemnifying

Party’s gross negligence or willful misconduct in performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

1. The terms of this Agreement will control in the event of any con�ict with the Streamline Terms of

Service, and Streamline will provide notice to the Customer of any change in the Terms of Service within

thirty (30) days of such changes.

Page 2 of 3



(916) 900-6619

info@getstreamline.com

www.getstreamline.com

WHAT YOUR STREAMLINE WEB SUBSCRIPTION INCLUDES:

Technology Setup and Training Ongoing Support

Easy-to-use website tool allows you

to control your content - no  more

waiting on a vendor or IT.

Initial website setup is free, and done

before we meet - including

information architecture (menu) best

practices.

Unlimited support is included for

anyone on your staff responsible for

updating the website.

Built-in ADA compliance (the

platform is fully accessible out of the

“box”).

Introduction to your state

requirements so you know what

needs to be posted.

Support system is built into your

website - get help with the click of a

button.

State-speci�c transparency

dashboard with checkpoints for all

posting requirements.

Training for your anyone on your

staff via remote meeting to help you

learn the system.

Unlimited hosting of content and �les

so you never have to “upgrade” your

account.

Meeting dashboard with agenda

reminders, one-click agenda and

minute upload that takes seconds.

Free domain included

(acmemud.specialdistrict.org) or

connect your own custom domain /

web address.

Extensive knowledge base of how-to

articles and getting started guides

are available 24/7.

Ongoing improvements to existing

features included at no cost - your

software will never be out of date.

Free SSL security certi�cate so that

your site is served over https and

visitors are protected.

Can’t �gure out how to send your

question? That’s ok, you’ll have our

technical support number, too.

And if (when) your state passes additional website mandates, Streamline Web will be updated to 
help you comply as effortlessly as possible.

TYPICAL ONBOARDING TIMELINE:

Page 3 of 3



2023-01 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND 2023 OPERATING BUDGET 

 

 

COMES NOW, David Jones, the Chairman of Jefferson Parkway Public Highway 

Authority (the “Authority”), and certifies that at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 

the Authority held, Thursday, the 19th day of October, 2023, at 3:00 P.M., at Arvada City Hall, 

8101 Ralston Road, Arvada, Colorado, Council Conference Room, at which time the following 

Resolution was adopted by affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors, to-wit: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority appropriated funds for the fiscal 

year 2023 as follows: 

 

Operating Fund  $ 38,500 

 

 and; 

 

 WHEREAS, the necessity has arisen for additional expenditures and transfers by the 

Authoirty due to additional costs which could not have been reasonably anticipated at the time of 

adoption of the budget, requiring the expenditure of funds in excess of those appropriated for the 

fiscal year 2023, and 

 

 WHEREAS, funds are available for such an expenditure and transfer from surplus 

revenue funds of the Authority; and 

 

WHEREAS, due and proper notice was published on Thursday, October 12, 2023 in The 

Denver Post, indicating (i) the date and time of the hearing at which the adoption of the proposed 

2023 budget amendment will be considered; (ii) that the proposed budget amendment is 

available for inspection by the public at a designated place; and (iii) that any interested persons 

may file any objections to the proposed budget amendment at any time prior to the final adoption 

of the budget by the Authority, as shown on the publisher’s Affidavit of Publication attached 

hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed budget amendment was open for inspection by the public at a 

designated place; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on Thursday, October 19, 2023 and interested 

persons were given the opportunity to file or register any objections to said proposed budget 

amendment and any such objections were considered by the Board of Directors; and  



2023-01 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Authority 

shall and hereby does amend the budget for the fiscal year 2023 as follows: 

 

Operating Fund $105,600 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that such sums are hereby appropriated from the 

revenues of the Authority to the Operating Fund for the purpose stated, and that any ending fund 

balances shall be reserved for purposes of Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution. 

 

Whereupon, a motion was made by Director ____________________ and seconded by 

Director _______________________, and upon a unanimous vote this Resolution was approved 

by the Board of Directors. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 19th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 

 

   JEFFERSON PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

        

By:          

Its:         

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

        

By:    

Its:     

 



EXHIBIT A 

 

Notice of Regular Meeting 

Affidavit of Publication 

Notice as to Proposed 2023 Budget Amendment 

 



NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
OF THE 

JEFFERSON PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY 

TO BE HELD 

Thursday, October 19, 2023 
Arvada City Hall 

8101 Ralston Rd., Arvada, CO 

3:00 p.m. 
Council Conference Room, 3rd Floor 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the JEFFERSON 

PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, of the County of Jefferson, the City 

and County of Broomfield, and the City of Arvada, State of Colorado, will hold a Regular 

Board Meeting on Thursday, October 19, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. at Arvada City Hall, 8101 

Ralston Road, Arvada, Colorado.  The purpose of the meeting is to conduct such business 

as may come before the Board.  This meeting is open to the public.   

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Comment

4. Approval of Minutes

A. August 17, 2023 JPPHA Meeting



5. New Business

A. Presentation of 2020 Audit

B. Letter of Engagement - Icenogle Seaver Pogue

C. Approval of Streamline Proposal

6. Report from Executive Director

7. 2023 Budget - Budget Amendment

A. Public Hearing on Budget Amendment for 2023 Budget: 
Resolution 23-01 A Resolution Amending the 2023 Operating Budget

8. 2024 Budget - Proposed Budget

A. Public Hearing on Proposed 2024 Operating Budget 
Resolution 23-02 A Resolution Approving the 2024 Operating Budget

9. Report of the General Counsel

10. Report from the Board of Directors

11. Adjournment

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
JEFFERSON PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY  

Posted this 12th day of October, 2023 





  
            Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority

PROPOSED 2024 BUDGET AND 2023 REVISED BUDGET

PROPOSED
2020 Actual 2021 Actual 2022 Estimate 2023 Budget 2023 Actual 2023 BUDGET 2024 Budget
UNAUDITED UNAUDITED UNAUDITED adopted YTD 9-25-23 REVISION

Beginning FB $ 38,982 $ 7,670 $ (1,543) $ (6,053) $ (6,053) $ (6,053) $ 57

     REVENUES

Member Contributions $ 131,792 $ 3,761 $ 34,924
     Arvada $ 18,750 $ 19,250 $ 35,200 $ 13,000
     Broomfield $ 35,200 $ 13,000
     Jeffco $ 19,250 $ 19,250 $ 35,200 $ 13,000
Interest/Other $ 815 $ 102 $ 500 $ 100

$ 132,607 $ 3,863 $ 34,924 $ 38,500 $ 38,500 $ 105,600 $ 39,100

     EXPENDITURES

Trainings and Meetings $ 275 $ 100 $ 100
Print/Mail/Supplies $ 350 $ 712 $ 100 $ 2,595 $ 3,000 $ 500
Dues $ 113
Insurance (CIRSA) $ 3,467 $ 3,680 $ 1,870 $ 1,880 $ 1,856 $ 1,856 $ 1,900
Audit Expense $ 6,200 $ 5,800 $ 6,500 $ 20,000
Misc $ 953

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Executive  Director $ 7,654 $ 10,000 $ 5,033 $ 6,000
Support Staff $ 14,888 $ 3,250 915 $ 5,000 $ 540 $ 1,200
  Icenogle $ 37,241 $ 4,663 $ 25,417 $ 10,000 $ 42,178 $ 50,000 $ 12,000
Squire Patton Boggs $ 7,046
Jones and Keller (H. Kenison) $ (23,999) $ (308) $ 15,263 $ 15,263
  Clifton $ 871 $ 1,019 $ 217 $ 600
  HC Peck
  The Antero Company
  Venable LLP
Mayer Brown Phase 1
Mayer Brown Phase 2
Engineering/Title/Survey $ 2,000 $ 2,000
  Ames and Gough
  Ostrander & Dingess
  HDR Engineering - includes RMMA $ 71,334 $ 1,052 $ 1,846 $ 3,000 $ 637 $ 1,300
  GBSM Inc $ 18,206 $ 1,500 $ 451 $ 500
  Section 1601
     ROW Work $ 432
  Survwest $ 8,671 $ 8,671

RFQ/RFP Documents (Ashurst LLP)

Land and Easement Acquisitions $ 27,281

Contingency $ 2,600 $ 2,500
$163,919 $13,076 $39,433 $37,380 $77,440 $ 99,490 $ 39,000

Ending FB $ 7,670 $ (1,543) $ (6,053) $ (4,933) $ (44,992) $ 57 $ 157



BUDGET MESSAGE FOR REVISED 2023 AND PROPOSED 2024 JPPHA BUDGET

October 10, 2023 

REVISED 2023 BUDGET

The 2023 budget was originally proposed for just those items needed to keep the Authority 
operating at a minimum level of function – audit costs, liability insurance premium, etc.  The 
budget was developed with the assumption that all matters relating to Broomfield’s request 
for withdrawal had been successfully resolved.   

Instead, there have been several technical and legal issues that required substantial 
unanticipated expenditures to provide information needed to move the settlement discussion 
forward.  For example, a precise metes and bounds description of the right of way to be 
provided by Broomfield had never been developed, but was necessary to have in the course of 
settlement discussions. As another example, a question about the Federal government’s 
responsibility for the post-cleanup remediation, if required, resulted in additional legal and 
research costs. The revised 2023 budget accounts for these, other unanticipated costs as well as 
the cost of the 2020 audit for a total amount of $99,490.

PROPOSED 2024 BUDGET

The proposal for the 2024 budget of $39,000 is based on the assumption there will be no 
resolution for Broomfield’s request to withdraw.   Half of that will be the cost to complete the 
2021, 2022 and 2023 audits and the rest is for costs associated with the continuing operation of 
the Authority on a minimal basis until market conditions for a new public-private partnership 
arise. 

Respectfully submitted, 

William A. Ray, Jr.
Executive Director,
Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority



  23-02 

STATE OF COLORADO 

JEFFERSON PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY 

2024 BUDGET RESOLUTION 

RESOLUTION 23-02 

 

 

The Board of Directors of the Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority, State of 

Colorado, held a regular meeting at Arvada City Hall, 8101 Ralston Road, Arvada, Colorado 

80002 on Thursday, October 19, 2023 at the hour of 3:00 P.M., at which a quorum of the Board 

of Directors was present. 

 

 Counsel reported that, prior to the meeting, each of the directors had been notified of the 

date, time and place of this meeting and the purpose for which it was called.  It was further reported 

that this meeting is a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Jefferson Parkway Public 

Highway Authority and that a notice of regular meeting has been posted in accordance with Section 

24-6-402, C.R.S. and as prescribed in the resolution on annual actions regarding meetings and 

notices, adopted at the January 17, 2019 meeting of the Jefferson Parkway Public Highway 

Authority and to the best of counsel’s knowledge, remains posted to the date of this meeting.  A 

copy of the Notice of Regular Meeting, which was used for this purpose and an original publisher’s 

Affidavit of Publication are attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

 



  23-02 

 Thereupon, Commissioner _____________ introduced and moved the adoption of the 

following Resolution: 

 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE JEFFERSON PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY  

 

Resolution 23-02 

 

Summarizing Expenditures and Revenues for Each Fund and Adopting a Budget and 

Appropriating Sums of Money to Each Fund in the Amounts and for the Purposes Set Forth 

Herein for the Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority for the Calendar Year 

Beginning on the First Day of January 2024 and Ending on the Last Day of December 2024. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Jefferson Parkway Public 

Highway Authority (the “Authority”) has authorized its treasurer and accountant to prepare and 

submit a proposed budget to said governing body at the proper time; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed budget has been submitted to the Board for its review and 

consideration; and 

 

 WHEREAS, due and proper notice was published on Thursday, October 12, 2023 in the 

Denver Post, indicating (i) the date and time of the hearing at which the adoption of the proposed 

budget will be considered; (ii) that the proposed budget is available for inspection by the public at 

a designated place; and (iii) that any interested persons may file any objections to the proposed 

budget at any time prior to the final adoption of the budget by the Authority; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated 

place; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on Thursday, October 19, 2023 and interested 

persons were given the opportunity to file or register any objections to said proposed budget and 

any such objections were considered by the Board; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the budget being adopted by the Board has been prepared based on the best 

information available to the Board regarding the effects of Section 29-1-301, C.R.S., and Article 

X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution; and 

 

 WHEREAS, whatever increases may have been made in the expenditures, like increases 

were added to the revenues so that the budget remains in balance, as required by law. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE JEFFERSON PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, STATE OF 

COLORADO: 

 



  23-02 

 Section 1. Summary of 2024 Revenues and 2024 Expenditures.  That the estimated 

revenues and expenditures for each fund for fiscal year 2024, as more specifically set forth in the 

budget attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference, are accepted and 

approved. 

 

Section 2. Adoption of Budget.  That the budget as submitted, amended and attached 

hereto as Exhibit B, is approved and adopted as the budget of the Jefferson Parkway Public 

Highway Authority for fiscal year 2024. 

 

Section 3. Appropriations.  That the amounts set forth as expenditures and balances 

remaining, as specifically allocated in the budget attached hereto, are hereby appropriated from 

the revenue of each fund, to each fund, for the purposes stated and no other. 

 

Section 4. Budget Certification.  That the budget shall be certified by David Jones, 

Chairman of the Authority, and made a part of the public records of the Jefferson Parkway Public 

Highway Authority and a certified copy of the approved and adopted budget shall be filed with the 

Colorado Department of Local Affairs Division of Local Government. 

 

 The foregoing Resolution was seconded by __________________________. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED ON THE 19th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 

 

 

(SEAL) 

JEFFERSON PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY 

AUTHORITY 

 

 

 __________________________________________ 

 By:  David Jones 

 Its:  Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

By:        

Its:        



  23-02 

STATE OF COLORADO 

JEFFERSON PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY 

 

I, David Jones, hereby certify that I am a director and the duly elected and qualified 

Chairman of the Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority (the “Authority”), and that the 

foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the record of proceedings of the Board of Directors 

of the Authority, adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Jefferson Parkway 

Public Highway Authority held on Thursday, October 19, 2023, at 3:00 P.M. as recorded in the 

official record of the proceedings of the Authority, insofar as said proceedings relate to the budget 

hearing for fiscal year 2024; that said proceedings were duly had and taken; that the meeting was 

duly held; and that the persons were present at the meeting as therein shown. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the official 

seal of the Authority this 19th day of October, 2023. 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

              

      David Jones, Chairman 

 

 



  23-02 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Notice of Regular Meeting 

Affidavit of Publication 

Notice as to Proposed 2024 Budget 



NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
OF THE 

JEFFERSON PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY 

TO BE HELD 

Thursday, October 19, 2023 
Arvada City Hall 

8101 Ralston Rd., Arvada, CO 

3:00 p.m. 
Council Conference Room, 3rd Floor 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the JEFFERSON 

PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, of the County of Jefferson, the City 

and County of Broomfield, and the City of Arvada, State of Colorado, will hold a Regular 

Board Meeting on Thursday, October 19, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. at Arvada City Hall, 8101 

Ralston Road, Arvada, Colorado.  The purpose of the meeting is to conduct such business 

as may come before the Board.  This meeting is open to the public.   

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Comment

4. Approval of Minutes

A. August 17, 2023 JPPHA Meeting



5. New Business

A. Presentation of 2020 Audit

B. Letter of Engagement - Icenogle Seaver Pogue

C. Approval of Streamline Proposal

6. Report from Executive Director

7. 2023 Budget - Budget Amendment

A. Public Hearing on Budget Amendment for 2023 Budget: 
Resolution 23-01 A Resolution Amending the 2023 Operating Budget

8. 2024 Budget - Proposed Budget

A. Public Hearing on Proposed 2024 Operating Budget 
Resolution 23-02 A Resolution Approving the 2024 Operating Budget

9. Report of the General Counsel

10. Report from the Board of Directors

11. Adjournment

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
JEFFERSON PARKWAY PUBLIC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY  

Posted this 12th day of October, 2023 





  23-02 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Budget Message 

Budget Document 

 

 

  

 



BUDGET MESSAGE FOR REVISED 2023 AND PROPOSED 2024 JPPHA BUDGET 

October 10, 2023  

REVISED 2023 BUDGET 

The 2023 budget was originally proposed for just those items needed to keep the Authority 
operating at a minimum level of function – audit costs, liability insurance premium, etc.  The 
budget was developed with the assumption that all matters relating to Broomfield’s request 
for withdrawal had been successfully resolved.    

Instead, there have been several technical and legal issues that required substantial 
unanticipated expenditures to provide information needed to move the settlement discussion 
forward.  For example, a precise metes and bounds description of the right of way to be 
provided by Broomfield had never been developed, but was necessary to have in the course of 
settlement discussions. As another example, a question about the Federal government’s 
responsibility for the post-cleanup remediation, if required, resulted in additional legal and 
research costs. The revised 2023 budget accounts for these, other unanticipated costs as well as 
the cost of the 2020 audit for a total amount of $99,490. 

PROPOSED 2024 BUDGET 

The proposal for the 2024 budget of $39,000 is based on the assumption there will be no 
resolution for Broomfield’s request to withdraw.   Half of that will be the cost to complete the 
2021, 2022 and 2023 audits and the rest is for costs associated with the continuing operation of 
the Authority on a minimal basis until market conditions for a new public-private partnership 
arise.  

Respectfully submitted,  

William A. Ray, Jr. 
Executive Director, 
Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority 



            Jefferson Parkway Public Highway Authority

PROPOSED 2024 BUDGET AND 2023 REVISED BUDGET

PROPOSED

2020 Actual 2021 Actual 2022 Estimate 2023 Budget 2023 Actual 2023 BUDGET 2024 Budget

UNAUDITED UNAUDITED UNAUDITED adopted YTD 9-25-23 REVISION

Beginning FB 38,982$       7,670$                     (1,543)$                 (6,053)$                 (6,053)$                 (6,053)$         57$                

     REVENUES

Member Contributions 131,792$     3,761$                     34,924$                

     Arvada 18,750$                19,250$                35,200$        13,000$        

     Broomfield 35,200$        13,000$        

     Jeffco 19,250$                19,250$                35,200$        13,000$        

Interest/Other 815$             102$                        500$                     100$             

132,607$     3,863$                     34,924$                38,500$                38,500$                105,600$      39,100$        

     EXPENDITURES

Trainings and Meetings 275$                        100$                     100$             

Print/Mail/Supplies 350$                        712$                     100$                     2,595$                  3,000$          500$             

Dues 113$                        

Insurance (CIRSA) 3,467$          3,680$                     1,870$                  1,880$                  1,856$                  1,856$          1,900$          

Audit Expense 6,200$          5,800$                  6,500$          20,000$        

Misc 953$             

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Executive  Director 7,654$                  10,000$                5,033$                  6,000$          

Support Staff 14,888$       3,250$                     915 5,000$                  540$                     1,200$          

  Icenogle 37,241$       4,663$                     25,417$                10,000$                42,178$                50,000$        12,000$        

Squire Patton Boggs 7,046$          

Jones and Keller (H. Kenison) (23,999)$      (308)$                       15,263$                15,263$        

  Clifton 871$             1,019$                  217$                     600$              

  HC Peck

  The Antero Company

  Venable LLP

Mayer Brown Phase 1

Mayer Brown Phase 2

Engineering/Title/Survey 2,000$          2,000$          

  Ames and Gough

  Ostrander & Dingess

  HDR Engineering - includes RMMA 71,334$       1,052$                     1,846$                  3,000$                  637$                     1,300$          

  GBSM Inc 18,206$       1,500$                  451$                     500$              

  Section 1601

     ROW Work 432$             

  Survwest 8,671$                  8,671$          

RFQ/RFP Documents ( Ashurst LLP )

Land and Easement Acquisitions 27,281$       

Contingency 2,600$          2,500$          

$163,919 $13,076 $39,433 $37,380 $77,440 99,490$        39,000$        

Ending FB 7,670$          (1,543)$                    (6,053)$                 (4,933)$                 (44,992)$               57$                157$             


